
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 

July 07, 2005 – 6:00 P.M. 
Hardee County Board of County Commissioners Board Room 

412 W. Orange Street, Courthouse Annex, Room 102, Wauchula, FL 33873 
 

MINUTES 
 
Planning and Zoning Board    Staff 
James Barncord, present    B/Z Director, T. Mike Cassidy, present 
Don Chancey, excused    County Manager, Lex Albritton, absent 
Roger Conley, Chairman, present   County Attorney, Ken Evers, absent 
Dan Graham, present     B/Z Office Manager, B.J. Haney, present 
Charles Nicholson, Vice-Chairman, present  B/Z Executive Asst., Donna Black, present 
Carl Saunders, present 
Fred Small, excused 
Vida Tomlinson, present 
Max Ullrich, absent     No News Media identified 
 
Chairman Conley called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. A quorum was present. 
 
B/Z Office Manager Haney advised the Public Notice for the Regular Meeting was published in 
The Herald-Advocate on June 23, and June 30, 2005 and Affidavit of Publication is on file. 
 
Building/Zoning Director Cassidy advised courtesy notices were mailed to adjoining property 
owners and all advertisements/public notices were properly posted. 
 
Conley read the Planning and Zoning Board’s General Rules of Procedure. 
 
B.J. Haney, as a Notary Public, State of Florida, administered the oath to those offering 
testimony. 
 
MOTION by Board Member Saunders, second by Board Member Barncord to approve Minutes 
of Planning and Zoning Board June 02, 2005 Regular Meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Agenda 05-24 
 
Conley advised of a request from Terraventures, LLC by and through its Authorized 
Representative for a Rezone of 259MOL acres from A-1 (Agriculture) to F-R (Farm-Residential) 
for the development of single-family dwellings. 
 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for Rezone containing the 
Staff Report for review prior to the 07/07/05 meeting. 
 
Cassidy highlighted the Rezone Staff Report including the conclusion, and recommendation for 
approval. Cassidy submitted the Staff Report to record as evidence, no objections were 
presented. 
 
James Wohl, Authorized Representative for Terraventures LLC, 1800 St Rd 17 South, Avon 
Park, FL 33825 was present and sworn. 
 
Board reviewed the Rezone request. 
 
Wohl advised: 

• there will be no farmworker housing or mobile homes; 
• this will be a high-end housing development; 
• there will be a homeowners’ association; 



HARDEE COUNTY 
PLANNING and ZONING BOARD   -2-               07/07/05 
MINUTES 
 

• although some of the lots are planned to be smaller, some of the lots could possibly be 
20 acres in size; 

• everyone does not want to live in golf-course-homes; 
• there are some wetlands on this parcel and there are plans to keep the 20 acre tracts 

near the wetlands some of the yards can enjoy Cypress strands; 
• the dwellings will be on private septic tank and private potable water wells; 
• he is aware the dairy may have some impact on the proposed project. 

 
Wohl pointed out that based on the proposed extension of Schumacher Rd. in Highlands 
County to join Steve Roberts Special in Hardee County would make this property desirable to 
business owners for possibly estate-type dwellings. this is a good area for single-family homes. 
 
There was discussion regarding the interior road for the proposed development and Wohl 
advised the preliminary plans were to pave the interior road providing County road frontage for 
the smaller lots and to install a farm-to-market road possibly shelled to provide access for the 
20-acre-lots. 
 
Wohl noted that a homeowners’ association is planned for the 20-acre lots for ingress/egress 
maintenance. 
 
Board Member Nicholson expressed concern for the long-term road maintenance fees for 
upkeep. Nicholson cited other developments whose developer or homeowners’ association do 
not provide road maintenance. 
 
Chairman called for public input. 
 
Sharon Moye, 3379 Parnell Road, Zolfo Springs, FL 33890 was sworn and addressed the 
Board. 
 
Moye inquired and Wohl reported that although the size of the proposed dwellings had not been 
finalized, a size of 1200 square feet under air conditioning would be considered. 
 
Moye pointed out that her family’s farming operation joins this proposed project on three sides 
and she reminded the Board of the intensity of an agricultural operation. Moye advised that her 
fields have five power units operational 24/7 as needed; tractors spraying sometimes 24/7; 
hundreds of migrant labors in the fields from daylight until dark; four boom cannons operating 
every three minutes from dark until daylight to prevent having to secure permits to kill the deer 
and the smell of vegetable fields as the produce rots at the end of a season. 
 
Moye advised: 

• of the floodplains in this area and expressed concern as to how effective the drainage 
will be after intense residential development is installed; 

• of the concern that once the parcel is rezoned to F-R (Farm-Residential) that a possible 
future rezoning would result in even smaller lots resulting in greater density of homes; 

• of a question of who is going to look-out for the agriculture operations of the County. 
 
Moye urged the Board to stop piece-meal rezoning for residential development in the 
agricultural-zoned districts and in the agricultural future land use areas of Hardee County. 
 
Gary Blackman, 1105 Parnell Rd., Zolfo Springs, FL 33873 was sworn and addressed the 
Board. 
 
 



HARDEE COUNTY 
PLANNING and ZONING BOARD   -3-               07/07/05 
MINUTES 
 
Blackman advised he has a grove and caretaking nearby and expressed concern that potential 
buyers for high-end housing would steer away from the land near a dairy. Blackman pointed out 
If the road extensions are implemented, this will be the front door into Hardee County, and this 
is still agricultural land. 
 
Blackman expressed concern over the small lots and only a portion of the interior road being 
planned for paving. 
 
There was discussion regarding the roads in Hammock Estates and there was considerable 
comments regarding the density of one-home-to-one-acre-of-land in this area. 
 
Moye stated she was opposed to the request for rezoning. 
 
The Board was advised that the request is for rezoning only; that development will require a Site 
Development Plan that will be presented to this Board for consideration and approval, and the 
SDP must contain sign-offs from including, but not limited to, Southwest Florida Water 
Management District, State of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection, and State of 
Florida, Department of Health. Board was reminded that at the presentation of the SDP, the 
Board can impose restrictions and conditions. 
 
Ronald Moye, 3379 Parnell Road, Zolfo Springs, expressed his opposition to the requested 
rezoning. 
 
Barncord inquired of Sharon Moye how this was different from a zoning issue she presented 
some years ago. 
 
Moye requested her objection to Barncord’s inference be recorded in the minutes. 
 
MOTION by Board Member Tomlinson, second by Board Member Barncord to recommend 
approval to the Board of County Commissioners the request for Rezone of 259MOL acres from 
A-1 (Agriculture) to F-R (Farm-Residential) for the development of single-family dwellings based 
on the regulations as contained in the Hardee County Unified Land Development Code 
pertaining to rezoning, based staff’s findings, conclusion, and recommendation for approval, and 
based on the testimony received and the evidence presented at the public hearing. Motion 
carried with Board Member Graham voting NO. 
 
Tomlinson advised that for the record the Property Owners concerns can be addressed in total 
when the proposed development is presented to the P/Z Board in the Site Development Plan 
and plat. 
 
Chairman advised the County Commissioners will receive a recommendation from the P/Z 
Board and hold a public hearing on Thursday, July 28, 2005, 8:35 A.M. 
 
The mis-statement was corrected that the BCC would hear on Thursday, July 14, 2005, 8:35 
A.M. 
 
With no further business to come before the board MOTION by Nicholson, second by Barncord 
to adjourn the regular meeting at 6:50 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Next regular Planning/Zoning Meeting is scheduled for Thursday, August 04, 2005, 6:00 P.M. 
Hardee County Board of County Commissioners Board Room, 412 W. Orange Street, 
Courthouse Annex, Room 102, Wauchula, Florida 33873. 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
B.J. Haney 
B/Z Office Manager, Acting Recording Secretary   My Documents\Plan&Zon\MINUTES\070705.doc 


